## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 75,282

On Appeal From The Florida Public Service Commission

#### INTERNATIONAL TELECHARGE, INC.,

Appellant,

v.

#### FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION,

Appellee.

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT INTERNATIONAL TELECHARGE, INC.

Michael L. Rosen (FBN 243531) Susan L. Turner (FBN 772097) D. Bruce May (FBN 354473) HOLLAND & KNIGHT Post Office Drawer 810 Tallahassee, FL 32302 (904) 224-7000

Attorneys for International Telecharge, Inc.

#

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This case is before the Court on appeal from a Final Order (No. 20489) of the Public Service Commission ("PSC") [A 1-25), as modified by an Order Granting In Part and Denying In Part Motions For Reconsideration of Order No. 20489 ("Order on Reconsideration") [A 26-43], in a proceeding initiated by the PSC to determine whether and under what conditions the provision of operator services by telephone companies other than the local exchange companies ("LECs") and AT&T Communications of the Southern States, Inc. ("ATT-C") should be permitted in the public labelled those telephone companies The PSC has interest. providing operator services other than the LECs and ATT-C as alternative operator service ("AOS") providers. By those orders, the PSC ruled that AOS providers are in the public interest only if they comply with certain AOS-specific regulatory requirements [A 22, 39], including a rate cap tied to ATT-C rates [A 15-16, Because the requirements imposed by the PSC relate to the rates and services of telephone companies, this Court has jurisdiction. Art. V, \$3(b)2, Fla. Const.; \$\$350.128(1), and 364.381, Fla. Stat. (1989).

Appellant, INTERNATIONAL TELECHARGE, INC. ("ITI"), like other AOS companies, provides intrastate long distance operator services primarily to the transient public through subscribing locations such as hotels, motels, hospitals, and privately owned pay telephones [T 733]. The AOS industry is of relatively recent origin, having developed in the mid-1980s as part of the emerging

competition in the long distance telecommunications industry. The capability of long distance telephone companies, other than ATT-C, to furnish operators to complete operator assisted long distance calls has emerged recently as (1) the technology has developed that allows the traditional service to be improved upon, and (2) the Regional Bell Operating Companies have been forced to make available to long distance telephone companies the capability of validating collect, third party and calling card The AOS industry has also fulfilled a market demand numbers. that was created when ATT-C and the LECs stopped paying commissions to hotels, hospitals and private pay telephone owners on operator-assisted calls made by their guests, patients [T 30-31, 41]. In essence, the hotel, hospital, or patrons private payphone owner subscribes to the services of an AOS, which handles operator-assisted calls from the premises, charges the caller based on time and distance with an additional flat fee for operator handling, and in some instances remits a portion of the charge to the subscriber in the form of a commission [T 43, 49]. Subscribers such as hotels and private payphone owners consider AOS companies beneficial because they not only pay commissions that help to defray the cost of equipment, but also provide billing alternatives and enhanced services not available from ATT-C or the LECs [T 880-912, 921-33, 1548-53].

The PSC began certificating AOS providers as interexchange carriers ("IXCs") in 1986. 1 As a result of consumer inquiries and complaints about AOS practices, however, the PSC at its February 2, 1988 Agenda Conference initiated this proceeding to determine whether the provision of AOS services was in the public interest; it also imposed certain restrictions in the interim, including a rate cap based on ATT-C charges for comparable service [A 4]. The PSC permitted AOS providers to continue charging the rates set forth in their approved tariffs pending a hearing, but ordered that all revenues generated by charges in excess of the ATT-C rate for a comparable call be held subject to refund [A 4].

At its March 15, 1988 Agenda Conference, the PSC voted to amend its ruling by reducing the amounts subject to refund to charges in excess of the comparable LEC rate or, for calls from non-LEC (private) payphones, to charges in excess of the ATT-C daytime rate plus \$1.00 [A 4]. This ruling was embodied in Order No. 19095, issued on April 4, 1988. The remaining portions of Order No. 19095 was rendered as proposed agency action and, as such, the PSC proposed to subject all AOS providers to specific conditions of service and certification requirements. [R 60].

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> ITI filed with the PSC an application for an interexchange carrier certificate along with its proposed tariff on May 6, 1987. By proposed agency action Order No. 18024 dated August 21, 1987 the PSC proposed to approve ITI's application and tariff. In re: Application of International Telecharae, Inc. for an Interexchange Certificate, 87 FPSC 8:247 (1987). Proposed Order No. 18024 was consummated by the PSC in Order No. 18146 on September 15, 1987.

ITI and other AOS providers filed petitions protesting Order No. 19095 [R 69, 77, 82, 88, 98], and numerous interested parties intervened, including several LECs, the Florida Pay Telephone Association, and the Florida Hotel and Motel Association [A 4, R 1048].

The "hold subject to refund" provision was then challenged by Central Corporation in a separate administrative proceeding, which resulted in a determination by a Division of Administrative Hearings ("DOAH") hearing officer that the provision constituted an invalidly promulgated rule [A 4]. While the PSC's appeal of that order was pending, the proceedings below continued to a hearing in August 1988. In the course of the hearing, which consumed three days, thirteen witnesses testified and submitted exhibits with respect to 21 separate issues [T1-1584; R Vol. XI and XVI]. Subsequently, the parties and intervenors submitted post-hearing briefs [R 449-9061.

Following a vote on the issues at a Special Agenda Conference on November 17, 1988 [A 4], the PSC entered its Final Order on December 21, 1988 [A 1-25]. In that order, the PSC determined that the provision of intrastate operator services by AOS companies would be permitted subject to certain conditions, including the following restrictions:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> In the interests of brevity and avoidance of unnecessary repetition, those portions of the testimony relevant to the issues presented here are treated in the appropriate section of argument together with record references.

- 1. AOS charges must be capped at the comparable ATT-C time-of-day rate, except that calls from private pay telephones could be charged up to the ATT-C daytime rate plus \$1.00;
- 2. Refunds of amounts collected in excess of the specified rate since the initiation of the proceeding, if held to be valid on the pending appeal, must be made in the form of a prospective reduction in rates;
- 3. AOS providers must comply with certain operating restrictions and service standards, including "double branding" of calls (i.e., notifying the caller that the AOS provider is handling the call at both the beginning and end of each call), providing extensive rate and service information on stickers or "tent cards," and requiring these subscribers to assure access to all locally available IXCs; and
- 4. AOS providers must route to the LEC all 0+3 long distance calls within a LATA<sup>4</sup> and all 0-5 calls.

<sup>3</sup> The term "0+" means that the caller simply dials "0" plus the called telephone number to complete the long distance call. Generally, a recorded message will advise the caller that he or she has reached an operator and to enter his or her billing method. The user is also told to touch 0 or to remain on the line if he or she requires the assistance of a live operator. For example, collect and person-to-person calls require a live operator. [T 740, 741.1

<sup>4</sup> The term "LATA" is an acronym for Local Access and Transport Area. It is a creature of Judge Greene in the now famous divestiture or breakup of ATT case. The concept of LATAs was discussed at some length by this Court in US Sprint Com-

ITI, among others, moved for reconsideration of the Final Order [R 1060, 1145] and requested a stay pending reconsideration [R 12801. The PSC granted a stay of the rate cap pending reconsideration, conditioned on the posting of a bond or corporate undertaking [R 13501. ITI filed a corporate undertaking which was approved by the PSC, allowing ITI to continue charging its tariffed rates subject to a refund of amounts exceeding the rate cap [R 13831.

On October 19, 1989, prior to the PSC's disposition of the motions for reconsideration, the First District Court of Appeal affirmed the determination that the "hold subject to refund" requirement in Order No. 19095 was invalid. Florida Public Service Commission v. Central Corp., 551 So.2d 568 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989). The PSC did not appeal the First District's decision.

In its Order on Reconsideration issued November 19, 1989, the PSC refused to reconsider the cap on AOS charges based on ATT-C rates, and further ordered that the rate cap would automatically adjust in accordance with any subsequent rate charges by ATT-C [A 33-34]. The PSC also refused to reconsider the requirements regarding notice and disclosure, double branding, access to all locally available IXCs, and routing of 0+ intraLATA and 0- traffic to the LEC [A 36-37]. With respect to

munications Company v. Marks, 509 So. 2d 1107 (Fla. 1987).

 $<sup>^{5}</sup>$  "0-" refers to calls where the caller simply dials "0" and no other digit.

the refund of revenues collected by ITI in excess of the rate caps during the pendency of stay, however, the PSC reversed its ruling that refunds would be made by a prospective reduction in rates, and ordered ITI to make direct refunds by requiring that "[e]ach charged call shall be recalculated and the excess credited or refunded to the entity originally billed." [A 34.1]

ITI then filed a timely notice of appeal to seek review in this Court [R 15511.

#### SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The PSC's imposition of a rate cap on AOS charges based upon ATT-C time-of-day rates is unsupported by any competent substantial evidence to show that such rates would be sufficient to afford AOS providers a fair rate of return. On the contrary, the unrefuted evidence showed not only that AOS providers must bear greater costs than ATT-C, but that ATT-C itself does not earn enough from its rates to cover the costs of operator services and must cross-subsidize from other sources of revenue — an option not available to AOS providers. Although the burden was on the PSC to show that existing approved AOS rates are unreasonable and should be reduced, the PSC admittedly did not review and present any cost data supporting its supposition that ATT-C time-of-day rates would cover AOS costs. Absent such evidence, the rate cap cannot be sustained.

Because the evidence conclusively established that the ATT-C rates would not enable AOS providers to earn a fair rate of return, as required by statute and by the constitutional

guarantee of just compensation, the cap is confiscatory. Moreover, by ordering that the cap be automatically adjusted to conform to future rate changes by ATT-C, which do not require PSC approval, the PSC unlawfully delegated its exclusive ratemaking power to ATT-C. Such a delegation of power is not only unauthorized and arbitrary, but constitutes a manifest abuse of discretion where, as here, the power to fix AOS rates is reposed in their largest competitor, which is the dominant carrier in the marketplace.

The PSC's order, on reconsideration, that ITI make refunds directly to the transient end users rather than by a prospective rate reduction, is patently arbitrary and punitive. The testimony was uncontradicted, and the PSC itself found in its Final Order, that implementing a direct refund to transient callers would be virtually impossible, imprudent, time consuming, and cost prohibitive; no justification was offered for changing that conclusion. Because a direct refund would not accomplish the PSC's objective any better than a prospective rate reduction, and because the expense of processing direct refunds would likely exceed the total amount of the refund and impose costs on LECs and their local ratepayers, the decision to require direct refunds is arbitrary, and amounts to an unauthorized penalty.

The PSC order, by prescribing restrictions and requirements for AOS providers that are not imposed on ATT-C or LECs with respect to the same services, unjustifiably discriminates against AOS providers in violation of the equal protection

clause, and places AOS providers at a competitive disadvantage relative to ATT-C, contrary to the public interest.

Finally, the PSC's directive that all 0+ intraLATA traffic and all 0- traffic be reserved to the LECs is anticompetitive action based on policy assumptions that lack evidentiary support; and the requirement that all 0- traffic be routed to the LECs also exceeds the PSC's authority by effectively favoring ATT-C with respect to calls for which equal access has been federally mandated.

#### ARGUMENT

I. THE PSC'S IMPOSITION OF A RATE CAP BASED ON ATT-C RATES IS UNSUPPORTED BY COMPETENT SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE, IS CONFISCATORY, AND CONSTITUTES AN UNLAWFUL DELEGATION OF RATEMAKING POWER.

This Court has established that, in reviewing orders of the PSC, it "will not affirm a decision of the Commission if it is arbitrary and unsupported by substantial competent evidence, or in violation of a statute or a constitutionally guaranteed right." Shevin v. Yarborough, 274 So. 2d 505, 509 (Fla. 1973). Analysis reveals that the PSC's imposition of a rate cap on AOS providers based upon ATT-C time-of-day rates constitutes reversible error because (a) the record reflects no competent substantial evidence to support a finding that ATT-C rates are fair, just, reasonable, as sufficient for AOS providers; (b) the evidence shows that the ATT-C rate cap denies AOS providers a fair rate of return, and thus is confiscatory in violation of the AOS providers' statutory and constitutional rights; and (c) by

a

tying the rate cap to ATT-C rates, including future changes by ATT-C, the PSC improperly delegated its ratemaking power.

#### (a) Application Of The ATT-C Rates As A Cap On AOS Rates Is Not Supported By Competent Substantial Evidence.

reasonable rates for telephone companies operating under its jurisdiction. In exercising that authority, however, the PSC is subject to two statutory limitations. First, Florida law requires that "[a]ll rates, tolls, contracts, and charges of ... telephone companies ... shall be fair, just, reasonable, and sufficient..." §364.03(1), Fla. Stat. (1989). The legislature has mandated that when the PSC fixes rates, "no telephone company shall be denied a reasonable rate of return upon its rate base." §364.035(1), Fla. Stat. (1989). Where, as here, rates are readjusted, the authorizing statute specifically directs that "the commission shall allow a fair and reasonable return on the telephone company's honest and prudent investment...." §364.14(1), Fla. Stat. (1989).

The second restraint on PSC ratemaking authority is the requirement that its actions must be based on findings "supported by competent substantial evidence in the record." \$120.68(10), Fla. Stat. (1 9); see also \$120.57(1)(b)7, Fla. Stat. (1989). Competent substantial evidence is "such evidence as will establish a substantial basis of fact from which the fact at issue can reasonably be inferred [or] ... such relevant evidence as a reasonable mind would accept as adequate to support a

conclusion." <u>De Groot v. Sheffield</u>, 95 So.2d 912, 916 (Fla. 1957). This Court has consistently held that an absence of competent substantial evidence requires reversal of PSC orders, because essential findings may not be based on "conclusory statements," <u>Duval Utility Co. v. Florida Public Service Commission</u>, 380 So.2d 1028, 1031 (Fla. 1980), or on "speculation or supposition," <u>Tamiami Trail Tours</u>, <u>Inc. v. Bevis</u>, 299 So.2d 22, 24 (Fla. 1974), or on "unreliable evidence or no evidence at all." <u>Blocker's Transfer & Storage Co. v. Yarborouah</u>, 277 So.2d 9, 12 (Fla. 1973).

In light of those two restrictions on PSC ratemaking power, the primary issue to be resolved here is whether there was competent substantial evidence presented below to support the conclusion that applying ATT-C rates as a cap on AOS charges is fair, just, reasonable, and sufficient to assure AOS providers a return on investment. A review of the record discloses not only a complete absence of any comparative cost analysis or other evidence to substantiate a finding that ATT-C rates would enable AOS providers to earn a reasonable rate of return, but an overwhelming body of unrebutted testimony establishing that AOS providers experience higher costs than ATT-C, and that ATT-C itself may not be recovering its operator service costs.

The absence of *any* evidence to show that a cap based on ATT-C rates would be sufficient to cover costs was not only admitted by the PSC's Staff witness [T 1230-31, 1292-95], but was openly acknowledged by the commissioners themselves during the

course of the hearing. After observing that the PSC was setting the rate cap "using ... an AT&T rate structure that is ... not based on a rate or cost study" [T 13861, Commissioner Herndon lamented:

I guess what I'm struggling with is in trying to address the fundamental question here about how rates should be set, we have no evidence whatsoever in the record about the costs of any of these organizations, and we have no evidence about the cost for AT&T which we're using as a surrogate, ... and so I'm frankly in kind of a dilemma about how you go about setting rates without any real, tangible support for any'of the bases that we have used up to now. [T 1388-8°.].

Indeed, Commissioner Beard recognized that the only evidence regarding costs of operator services was the testimony that in 1987 Southern Bell did not recover its costs but suffered a \$16 million loss [T 13921.

The only testimony offered to support the imposition of a rate cap based on ATT-C rates was that of Alan Taylor, Chief of the PSC's Bureau of Service Evaluation. Taylor admitted that, in making its recommendation, the PSC Staff did not review any ATT-C or AOS cost of service studies [T 1230-31, 1349-50], did not determine whether ATT-C operator service rates cover costs [1292-94], did not request any actual cost data for any operator services [T 12951, did not analyze the impact of market forces on AOS providers [T 1275], and did not consider differences in billing and collection costs [T 1305-07]. Taylor acknowledged that operator service rates for ATT-C were last set by the PSC prior to divestiture [T 1358]. He also agreed generally that rates should be based on a carrier's reasonable costs plus a

return [T 13031, and that higher rates should be allowed if justified by costs [T 13551.

Nonetheless, Taylor recommended a rate cap based on ATT-C discounted time-of-day rates [T 13071, even if that rate does not cover the AOS provider's costs [T 13641, based on consumer dissatisfaction with paying rates higher than ATT-C rates [T 1354-55]. He expressed the belief that the ATT-C rate is appropriate because service is generally available from ATT-C or the LECs at that rate [T 1359,'1363-65]. In Taylor's opinion, the AOS provider's cost of service is not relevant from the end user's perspective [T 13951.

Notwithstanding the statutory mandate regarding its ratemaking authority, the PSC never made an affirmative finding, either in the Final Order or in the Order On Reconsideration, that ATT-C time-of-day rates would afford AOS providers a reasonable rate of return, or even cover AOS costs. Rather, the PSC simply found that "AOS providers have failed to demonstrate why they should be permitted to charge rates above ATT-C's." [A 16, 34.1 While acknowledging the AOS testimony "that the rates charged by the LEC and ATT-C for operator services fail to cover costs," the PSC concluded:

[N]o concrete evidence was presented to demonstrate whether current LEC or ATT-C intrastate operator rates do not cover costs. Further, the AOS parties did not produce sufficient cost data to show that

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> ATT-C experiences its peak traffic during the daytime business hours. As an incentive to encourage customers to shift their calls to the off-peak hours, ATT-C offers discounted rates during the evening and night hours. [T1305-07.]

their costs equaled or exceeded the current LEC or ATT-C rates. Therefore, our decision to cap the rates at the comparable ATT-C time-of-day charge is based on a lack of support for AOS providers charging higher rates for identical operator services provided by the LECs and ATT-C.

[A 16, 34.] In the Order On Rehearing, the PSC rejected the AOS claim that there was no evidence to show that ATT-C's costs are comparable to AOS costs, observing that "cost is only one factor in determining appropriate rates." [A 33-34.]

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