IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

INTERNATIONAL TELECHARGE, INC.,

Appellant,

Case No. 75,282

On Appeal From Order No. 20489 of The Florida Public Service Commission

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION,

Appellee.

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT SOUTHERN BELL TELEPHONE & TELEGRAPH COMPANY AS A PARTY OF RECORD IN THE PROCEEDINGS BELOW

HARRIS R. ANTHONY (FBN # 234291)
E. BARLOW KEENER (FBN# 0520489)
Suite 1910
150 W. Flagler Street
Miami, Florida 33130

Attorneys for Southern Bell Telephone & Telegraph Company

OF COUNSEL:

J. Robert Fitzgerald 4504 Southern Bell Center 675 West Peachtree Street Atlanta, Georgia 30375

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Commission's decision to continue its long standing and well-established policy requiring that all 0+ and 0-intraLATA traffic be exclusively reserved to the local exchange company ("LEC"), and to apply that policy to AOS providers to the same extent and in the same manner as it has been applied to other interexchange carriers ("IXCs") providing service within the state of Florida, is within the discretion of the Commission, is properly supported by substantial competent evidence in the proceeding below and does not unlawfully discriminate against AOS providers.

Contrary to Appellant's argument that the Commission's decision to retain its existing Q+ and Q routing requirements is "based on policy assumptions that evidentiary support," the Commission's decision in this regard is based on clear and long-standing Commission rules that have been enunciated repeatedly by the Commission in numerous proceedings over the past six years, and which have twice been considered and upheld by this Court. Appellant's show that the Commission's stated policy attempts reserving 0+ and 0- intraLATA calls to the LECs either does not exist or should be distinguished are all without merit.

Appellant's arguments that the Commission's application of its existing policy to AOS providers is discriminatory,

results in invidious differential treatment of similarly situated parties and is anticompetitive are untrue and irrelevant. The record below would not have supported a decision to allow AOS providers to provide local exchange service and this Court has previously approved the imposition of reasonable interim limits on competition in order to protect the public interest and assure an orderly transition to a competitive marketplace in the telecommunications area. The Commission's decision to maintain its existing policies pending their further review in other pending dockets where such policies can be reviewed in their larger context is a proper and permissible exercise of the Commission's regulatory authority.

The substantial record evidence developed in the proceedings below supports the Commission's decision to continue to reserve the routing of 0+ and 0- calls to the In particular, the record shows that AOS providers are, in many instances, not capable of providing the kinds of services including emergency services which end user callers within the state of Florida expect when dialing 0+ and 0- in order to access the local telecommunications All this evidence strongly supports network. of the Commission's decision in the proceeding below that it is in the public interest to require the transient public to go first through an AOS operator in order to reach the LEC operators by changing the Commission's previously mandated 0+ and 0-intraLATA routing procedure which is well accepted, understood and expected by the general public.

ARGUMENT

- I. THE COMMISSION'S DECISION TO MAINTAIN ITS POLICY THAT ALL 0+ AND 0- INTRALATA TRAFFIC BE EXCLUSIVELY RESERVED TO THE LEC IS WITHIN THE DISCRETION OF THE COMMISSION, IS PROPERLY SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE IN THE PROCEEDINGS BELOW AND DOES NOT UNLAWFULLY DISCRIMINATE AGAINST AOS PROVIDERS.
 - A. The Commission's existing policy on the routing of intraLATA 0+ traffic is clear and applies to all IXCs, including AOS providers.

In Section IV(a) of Appellant's initial brief filed with this Court [AB at p. 39], Appellant asserts that there is "no basis" for the Commission's requirement that all 0+ intraLATA traffic be exclusively reserved to the LEC. Appellant argues further that the Commission's Order No. 22243 somehow draws an "unfair distinction" between ordinary residential and business customers and the AOS provider's clients - hotels, motels, hospitals, universities and pay telephone owners - in the use of autodialers to transmit intraLATA calls. Each of the arguments made by Appellant is without merit.

In the first instance, it should be recognized that the Commission itself is undoubtedly the primary authority as to what its policies are, and the Court should give great

deference to the Commission's interpretation of its prior orders absent a substantial showing by the party seeking to challenge the Commission's interpretation. See, e.g., Storrs v. Pensacola & A.R. Co., 29 Fla. 617, 11 So. 226 (1892); Wilson v. Pest Control Company, 199 So.2d 777 (Fla. 4th DCA 1967); see also, §120.68(12), Fla. Stat. (1989). In this case, Appellant has failed to make such a showing. The issue of whether 0+ intraLATA traffic should be reserved to the LEC has been considered numerous times in various dockets by the Commission in the past. In each and every case, the Commission has strongly and unequivocally reaffirmed its continuing commitment to its prior policy of reserving 0+ traffic to the LEC.

а

а

The Commission first specifically considered the issue of carriage of 0+ intraLATA and inter-EAEA traffic in Order No. 13912, issued December 11, 1984, disposing of Petitions for Reconsideration and Clarification of Commission Order 13750, in which the Commission had established Toll Monopoly Areas ("TMAs") and Equal Access Exchange Areas ("EAEAs"). In this Order, the Commission unequivocally stated as follows:

AT&T-C requests clarification of the order [no. 137501 as it relates to the carriage of intraLATA inter-EAEA traffic. Our intent in this Order and in previous ones is for the LEC to be the carrier of all intraLATA 1+ and 0+ traffic.

Order No. 13912 at 3 (emphasis added) [A at 23]. It is difficult to imagine a more clear and unequivocal statement of policy by the Commission on the exact point presently being challenged by Appellant before this Court. In fact, one AOS provider's witness admitted that the "plain meaning" of the language cited is that all 0+ traffic is reserved for the LEC (Tat 89).

The Commission has repeatedly reaffirmed this clearly stated policy in subsequent dockets. Thus, in Order No. 14621, issued July 23, 1985, the Commission reaffirmed its existing policy as follows:

. . As stated previously, we have determined that for intraLATA calls, the LECs shall carry 1+ and 0+ traffic.

* * *

In Order No. 13912, in Docket No. 820537-TP, we stated that "the LEC is to be the carrier of all intraLATA 1+ and 0+traffic." While there is apparently some confusion about whether we intended that the reservation of 1+ and 0+ to the LEC for intraLATA traffic applied to OUTWATS as well as MTS, we believe that 1+ and 0+dialing is appropriately reserved to the LEC for all intraLATA traffic, both MTS and OUTWATS.

Order No. 14621 at 6; 11-12 [A at 40; 45-46]. This policy was again reaffirmed in Order No. 16343 issued on July 14, 1986, wherein the Commission re-examined and extended the existence of TMAs and EAEAs. The consistency with which

these policies have been enunciated and applied by the Commission over the years lends strong credence to the Commission's finding as to the existence and scope of these policies in the proceeding below.

B. Appellant's attempts to distinguish the Commission's prior policies as not applicable to AOS providers are without merit.

In the teeth of these unequivocal prior pronouncements of the Commission, the Appellant tries to construe the Commission's previous orders in such a way as to show that the Commission's policy has never applied to AOS providers and to argue, on that basis, that the Commission's present attempt to apply that policy to AOS providers under the guise of simply extending existing policy, "confirms that such policy is patently arbitrary." [AB at 41]. In this regard, the Appellant's argument is simply without merit.

The first leg of Appellant's argument asserts that Order No. 13912 only prohibits an IXC from handling "presubscribed" and 0+ intraLATA traffic. In that Order, unequivocally stating that the LEC is to be "the carrier of all intraLATA 1+ and 0+ traffic, "the Commission goes on to this policy applies "notwithstanding state that definition of equal which requires that access presubscription be available." (emphasis added) Having twice emphasized the point, the Commission reiterates:

a

This definition [of equal access] should be interpreted to mean that customers in an EAEA would be able to presubscribe to an IXC for interLATA and interstate traffic, but not for intraLATA, interEAEA traffic.

13912 at 3. [A at 23], Based on this language, Appellant apparently makes the leap of logic asserted in brief that, since this language only specifically refers to the elimination of the availability of presubscription for intraLATA, inter-EAEA traffic, Order No. 13912, therefore, "only" prohibits an IXC from "handling" presubscribed 1+ intraLATA traffic. [AB at 40], Nothing could be further from the truth. The import of this statement is not that it prohibits the IXC from "handling" presubscribed 1+ and 0+ intraLATA traffic; rather, it is that it prohibits the existence of presubscribed 1+ and 0+ intraLATA traffic (which, of course, also has the effect of preventing an IXC from handling such traffic). Accordingly, Appellant's argument is totally wrong and its intended inference - that some class of intraLATA toll traffic (i.e., "nonpresubscribed" l+ and 0+) which IXCs have always been allowed to carry - is clearly incorrect.

Since it is clear then that nonpresubscribed intraLATA inter-EAEA traffic is <u>all</u> that <u>can</u> <u>exist</u> under the Commission's orders, the Commission's prior determination in

Order No. 13750 that "the LECs shall generally have toll transmission monopolies in EAEA's," together with its strong emphasis in Order No. 13912 that "all intraLATA 1+ and 0+ traffic" be reserved to the LEC, makes it evident that these orders establish a clear policy that all 1+ and 0+ traffic is to be carried by the LEC, without regard to the concept of presubscription.

Having discredited the argument that there exists some class of intraLATA toll traffic which IXCs have always been permitted to carry, the remainder of Appellant's arguments as to why the Commission's 0+ restrictions do not apply to them are rendered moot. However, even if considered on their own, these arguments also lack merit.

For example, in the second portion of its argument, Appellant argues that in Order No. 14621, the Commission has approved the use of access codes to reach the IXC directly without using LEC facilities for the completion of intraLATA 0+ calls. What Appellant fails to point out is that this alleged approval by the Commission of direct access-code based access to the IXC on which Appellant so heavily relies was given solely in the context of the consideration of a statewide WATS offering, an area expressly made competitive and excluded from the TMAs and EAEAs established by the Commission in Order No. 13750. [A at 11]. Since the

Commission established EAEA toll competition in the WATS and MTS resale area in its original order, it is neither surprising nor probative of the issues on appeal in this case that the Commission has permitted the use of access codes to access directly the IXC in the context of a tariff-approved WATS offering. This is no different than permitting such direct access code dial up of the IXC in another area excluded from the LEC toll monopoly area the interLATA market and is just as irrelevant.

Consequently, it is clear that the second leg of Appellant's argument fails because the Commission's approval of access code dialing in Order No. 14621 is limited to the already competitive WATS area and does not stand for the broad proposition that Appellant contends (i.e., that nonpresubscribed access code dialing has always been permitted to circumvent the LEC toll monopoly areas). If this were true, the entire concept of toll monopoly areas established by the Commission would be a nullity.

Lastly, Appellant attempts to justify the use of an autodialer to override the 0+ dialing of the end user and convert an otherwise garden variety 0+ call into an access code dialed call routed through the AOS provider and not the LEC. In support of its argument, Appellant states that the Commission has "specifically determined that it would not

regulate the provision of such autodialing equipment in the competitive marketplace." [AB at 41]. As authority for this proposition, Appellant cites Commission Order 13364, issued June 1, 1984, in connection with In re: Revisions to Americall LDC, Inc's Tariff to Include Special Equipment, Docket No. 840151-TI. Order No. 13364, it should be noted, was issued by the Commission over five (5) months prior to the initial establishment of TMAs and EAEAs in Order No. Consequently, based on hornbook principles 13750. construction, the Commission's later pronouncements would govern. Moreover, the order cited simply declines to require "the tariffing of devices" such as automatic dialers in connection with their sale by resellers. Certainly this order does not stand for the sweeping proposition which the Appellant has asserted: that the Commission has approved the use or deployment of automatic dialers to circumvent or defeat established Commission policies regarding the routing of 0+ calls. In fact, the AOS providers' erroneous views in this area is precisely the reason that, in connection with its determination of whether the provision of alternative operator services was in the public interest, the Commission felt the need to reaffirm its long-standing policy that 0+ traffic is exclusively reserved to the LEC.

In summary, in support of Appellant's argument that the

Commission's action in applying its long-standing 0+ routing restrictions to AOS providers is "patently arbitrary," Appellant relies on a legally nonexistent form of intraLATA traffic, an inapplicable direct access code dialing authority, and a tariff decision that predates every Commission order bearing on these issues and which is, in any event, irrelevant. Viewed in this context, it is clear that Appellant's argument in this appeal must fail.

C. The Commission's decision to continue its policy of exclusively reserving 0+ traffic to the LECs does not discriminate among similarly situated parties.

With regard to the Appellant's final argument on appeal of the Commission's O+ intraLATA routing restrictions, Appellant argues that the Commission has somehow created an "unfair distinction in the use of autodialers to transmit intraLATA calls" between residential and business customers and the hotels, motels, hospitals, universities and pay phone owners who are the AOS provider's clients. [AB at 42]. It does not appear from a review of the record below that Appellant has previously raised this argument, and on that ground alone the argument should be rejected. Bonded Transportation, Inc. v. Lee, 336 \$0.2d 1132 (Fla. 1976); Wvrembek v. Frey, 231 So.2d 222 (Fla. 4th DCA 1970).

However, even if considered, the Court need not tarry long over this argument since the resolution is simple: To

the extent that the Commission's rules limit, indirectly, the actions of a hotel, motel, hospital or university served by an AOS provider, that is of no legal consequence. event, the limitations established by the Commission in order below on the AOS provider's services will apply equally as well regardless of whether those services are being given on behalf of the hotels, motels, hospitals or universities who are the AOS provider's current clients, or to residential business customers who use autodialers, and may, in the future, become AOS provider's clients; therefore, differing treatment exists. The same is true when one compares the situation of the AOS provider's clients directly business and residential customers. of Commission, in Order No. 20489, expressly declined to assert iurisdiction telephone over charges imposed by the hospitality industry, and therefore the Commission's Orders in the proceeding below do not restrict the owners of a hotel, motel, hospital or university from using autodialers for their own account to any greater or lesser extent than it does general residential or business customers. Furthermore, even if a difference in regulatory treatment did exist, it would be reasonable and appropriate. An end user who chooses to use an autodialer on his own telephone line has made the concious and knowing decision to do so. The user of an AOS provider's service to place a 0+ intraLATA call expects that the appropriate LECs operators and facilities will handle that call, not that the call will be routed in some other fashion. Viewed in this light, it is abundantly clear that there is no differing treatment between similarly situated parties and therefore no colorable claim of a violation of equal protection.

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